
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 22 June 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Tuesday, 30 June 2020 at 2.00 pm 
This meeting will be held by remote conferencing using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Louise Clack, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor 
Ian Stokes, Councillor Mark Whittington and one Conservative vacancy 

 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Companies Committee - 30 June 2020 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 

Companies 

Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  
   

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020 (Pages 3 - 7) 

   
4.   DeliverSK 

Report of the Leader of the Council giving a progress update for DeliverSK. 
(Pages 9 - 12) 

   
5.   St Martin's Park, Stamford 

Report of the Leader of the Council giving an update on the work undertaken 

since the Committee’s last meeting. 

(Pages 13 - 35) 

   
 Appendix D to this report, which contains the St Martin’s Park Risk Log, is exempt under paragraph 

3, Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contains information 

relating to the financial or business affairs of an individual or organisation.   

 
6.   EnvironmentSK 

Report of the Chairman of the Board, Environment SK Limited, giving an 

update on the Company’s first year performance and presenting the Strategic 

Business Plan.  

(Pages 37 - 50) 

   
 Appendix A to this report, which contains the EnvironmentSK Strategic Business Plan, is exempt 

under paragraph 3, Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it 

contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of an individual or organisation.   

 
7.   Work Programme (Pages 51 - 52) 

   
8.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

   



 
 

Minutes 
Companies Committee 
Tuesday, 4 February 2020 

  
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Chris Benn 
Councillor Louise Clack 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington 

  
Other Members  
Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader) 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Barry Dobson (Deputy Leader) 
 

 

Officers  
 
Interim Strategic Director, Growth (Harry Rai)  
Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Director of Law and Governance (Shahin Ismail) 
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery (Ken Lyon) 
Assistant Director, Growth (Jane McDaid) 
Chief Executive, InvestSK (Steve Bowyer) 
Interim Principal Democracy Officer (Sarah Evans) 
 

 
 
14. Disclosure of interests 
Minute 17 - Gravitas Housing Limited 
Minute 18 - Wherry’s Lane Management Company Limited 
Councillor Benn declared a personal interest in the above items due to his activity as an 
attorney in an impending purchase of a property in Wherry’s Lane from Gravitas on 
behalf of his brother. He also referred to a close relative being employed by Lambert 
Smith Hampton on a different project in another area, being the company that was 
managing the various general fund investment properties.   
 
15. Minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2020 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2020 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
The action sheet was considered and updated as follows: 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

 the draft notes of the InvestSK AGM be circulated to the Committee by email, it was 
noted these would be formally considered at the next AGM 

 the InvestSK articles had been reviewed by the Legal Team and it was confirmed 
that they reflected the model Articles of Association except where they provided 
more control to the Council. Also they were consistent with the model articles 
particularly around the question of indemnity for directors. The articles would be 
considered when InvestSK was next included on the Committee’s agenda 

 the Chair of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee be asked 
when Community Infrastructure Levy would be considered and report the date back 
to the Companies Committee 

 
16. Collaboration Agreement relating to Saint Martin's Park, Stamford 
The Assistant Director for Growth presented the Leader’s report on the Collaboration 
Agreement relating to Saint Martin’s Park, Stamford.  She referred to the Cabinet’s 
agreement at its meeting on 21 January 2020 to enter into a contractual Collaboration 
Agreement with Burghley Land Limited, as set out in the Heads of Terms, to bring 
forward the redevelopment of circa 35 acres of land for commercial, residential and 
retirement uses on a 50/50 shared development cost and profit basis. The matter was 
brought before the Companies Committee to scrutinise the decision. 
 
The following matters were raised 
 

 Should the project be progressed through DeliverSK? 
It was advised that DeliverSK was not yet an entity in its own right to deliver such a 
project. As Burghley was the largest landowner in the south of the district, as well as 
owning the land adjoining the site, they would bring local contacts and support and 
working with one of the largest stakeholders in the town would help to ensure the 
smooth delivery of the scheme. 

 

 The decision had been taken at Cabinet before consideration by this 
Committee  
This was due to the need for the decision to be taken as early as possible to enable 
the scheme to progress. The decision of Cabinet was to agree the principles of the 
Collaboration Agreement with detailed future monitoring of the project plan through 
this Committee.  

 

 Concern at the collaboration with Burghley Land Limited and it was 
questioned whether the Council might be better to work alone on the project 
and not take in a partner  
It was responded that the 50/50 joint enterprise would bring equal benefits for both 
parties and equal sharing of cost and risk, including the significant costs involved 
(such as masterplanning, construction and marketing). It was considered that a 
better scheme could be delivered by working collaboratively than working alone as 
Burghley brought more expertise in this area.   
 
It was also noted that the Council would see further returns from the development in 
the form of Council tax and business rates revenue once the homes and business 
units were occupied. 

4



 
 

 

 How the governance arrangements would work  
It was advised that the heads of terms outlined how decisions would be made 
including how the site would be disposed of, details of the planning application and 
design brief and any financial contributions that were necessary.  

 

 The value and uncertainty of the property market  
It was noted that the value of the site had remained static since the Council acquired 
it but also that there had been a recent upturn in the residential market in Stamford. 
The site was costing the Council approximately £20,000 per month and this was one 
of the reasons for the Council to move as quickly as possible to bring the site 
forward.  
 
It was also noted that Burghley’s interest extended beyond their site boundary and 
that they were keen to protect the historic views of Burghley House and the 
surrounding area. 

 
A Member felt that partnership with a potential objector of the development was not 
a reason to enter into such a working arrangement 

 

 The cost to clear the previous brownfield site  
It was explained that trial pits had shown that the site was not in very bad condition 
and details of the cost and what was involved would be included in the business 
plan. 

 

 Whether the Council had looked at demand: specifically the division between 
commercial and residential elements of the site  
It was explained that the Council was looking to recoup its value and the business 
plan would set out the proposed residential, retirement and commercial proposals on 
the joint sites. There was considered to be little demand for industrial space as the 
current business requirement in Stamford was for office, digital, and start-ups rather 
than traditional industrial development. It was also pointed out that the Council did 
not just want to buy and develop but to boost the economy and jobs in the town 
centre and this site would provide a balanced approach for residential, retirement 
and commercial development as well as providing sufficient car parking to support 
the site. Stamford was in need of business opportunities to create and retain jobs in 
the town. 

 
17. Gravitas Housing Limited 
The Interim Director for Growth presented the report of the Deputy Leader (in his 
capacity as Cabinet Member for Housing at the time of despatch of the agenda) on the 
current position of Gravitas Housing Limited. He referred to a formal handover on 13 
January 2020 of a combination of houses and apartments across 2 blocks at Wherry’s 
Lane in Bourne and to date 7 properties had been sold. There was a furnished 
showroom on site displaying a good quality product and the agent was actively 
promoting the properties and open days were planned. The Director advised that he 
would keep the Committee updated with progress. He added that the Council had 
acquired land opposite the Grantham College site which had potential for development 

5



 
 

and would provide a positive financial return. Gravitas could play a part in providing 
much needed affordable housing in the District and a significant role in the provision of 
small and medium size plots (under 40).  
 
It was noted that additional information was circulated to the Committee on 31 January 
2020 one of which was the current Business Plan and the other was an exempt paper of 
project cashflow forecast on the Wherry’s Lane Development. Members commented 
that the exempt paper had not been made readily available to the Committee and the 
Monitoring Officer agreed that the exempt paper should have been circulated and the 
process for circulation of additional information and exempt papers was under review. 
 
Members felt the report highlighted the need for more information particularly financial 
data and it was felt that this should be provided as exempt material if necessary. It was 
noted that the business plan circulated was dated 2017 and there should be a more up 
to date version. The Director responded that the business plan was still accurate as it 
was focussed on Wherry’s Lane development which was the only scheme currently 
being undertaken. 
 
There was some concern that affordable housing had not been included on the 
Wherry’s Lane site and this did not set a good example.  It was mentioned that 
affordable housing should be included on any future development sites as necessary.  
There was a query on the marketing of the Wherry’s Lane properties and noted that 2 
agents were currently promoting the development. 
 
It was noted that a new business plan should be prepared and would include the 
company’s governance arrangements and the role of the Committee and this would be 
presented to the Companies Committee before the May workshop.  
 
18. Wherry's Lane Management Company Limited 
The Assistant Director for Growth presented the Leader’s report on Wherry’s Lane 
Management Company Limited. She referred to the company being set up to run the 
service charge for the residential long leasehold tenants and it was a single purpose 
non-profit making company.   
 
There was a request to see the accounts that were available however it was advised 
that as they related to service charges paid by those who lived there to a private 
management company, the accounts were not accessible to the Council due to the 
micro business exemption. Members felt there were reputational matters to consider 
and they should be able to review the accounts of the Council-owned site. Members felt 
further advice was needed from the Interim Chief Executive and the new Chief 
Executive. 
 
19. Work Programme 
The Chairman presented the Committee’s work programme and explained that he 
would like to consider as much as of the business listed as possible before the 
workshop in May.   
 

6



 
 

The Committee felt they needed to receive more information on Gravitas and Wherry’s 
Lane Management Company at the April meeting and due to the heavy agenda 
proposed for that meeting, felt that an additional meeting in March would be helpful to 
consider the business plans for St. Martin’s Park, Stamford. 
 
20. Close of meeting 
The meeting was closed at 15:10. 
 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
30 June 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Update on DeliverSK 
This paper responds to the request for a progress update on DeliverSK. 

 

Report Author 

Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 

 
07773 237858 

 p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Non-Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive – Housing 
Delivery 

19 June 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 22 June 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council  22 June 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That Companies Committee notes the contents of this report and receives a report at 
its next meeting setting out options and recommendations as to establishing 
DeliverSK 

 

 

  

9

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1 Background 

1.1 On 6th September 2018 Cabinet approved the setting-up of the DeliverSK co-investment 

partnership. Authority to select the investment partner was delegated to the Cabinet 

Member for Growth.  

1.2 The decision had been ‘pre-scrutinised’ by the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on the 29th August 2018. 

1.3 IAG were chosen as the investment partner for DeliverSK following a desk top partner-

selection process and presentation to informal cabinet, and a Non-Key Decision was 

made on 19th December 2018.  

1.4 Discussions progressed with IAG during the course of 2019. During these discussions it 

transpired that the company that would be entering into the partnership was not IAG but 

was in-fact a subsidiary of IAG; namely IAGH3. 

1.5 The change in proposed partner would require a new Non-Key Decision and necessitated 

due diligence on the new entity. 

1.6 Also, during 2019, St Martin’s Park was progressed to Collaboration Agreement with 

Burghley Land Limited. This was approved by Cabinet on 21st January 2020.  

1.7 The St Martin’s Park Partnership is in the process of assessing interest from the 

development market and it is not yet clear whether further investment through DeliverSK – 

should it be established - would be necessary or desirable, but it remains a possibility. 

1.8 Progress with the St Martin’s Park scheme is a separate item on this agenda.  

2 Current Activities 

2.1 Responses have been sought, from IAG, in respect of the proposed partnership company 

IAGH3, and these are in the process of being assessed  

2.2 Once these responses have been fully-assessed a further report will be brought to 

Companies Committee to either recommend the signing of a new non-key decision or that 

the co-investment partnership proposal with IAG/IAGH3 is no longer pursued. 

2.3 If the co-investment partnership is not to be pursued with IAG/IAGH3, this will provide an 

opportunity to re-assess the need for a vehicle such as DeliverSK.   

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

3.1 The decision to enter into a co-investment partnership with IAG was considered by the 

Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 29th August 2018. 

4 Available Options Considered 

4.1 This report is for noting only so no alternative options have been considered. 

5 Preferred Option 

5.1 This report is for noting only. 

6 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

6.1 This report focusses on reporting progress as requested at the meeting of Companies 

Committee on 4th February 2020. 

7 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

10



 
 

7.1 Full assessment of the information provided by IAG will allow a report to be brought to 

Companies Committee, with an appropriate recommendation as to the way forward. 

7.2 Council approved a budget of £100k to fund the necessary costs that would be incurred in 

order to establish the appropriate governance and operating structure for DeliverSK.  To 

date, £77k has been incurred leaving a residual budget of £23k.   

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Companies Committee will need to review whether DeliverSK is needed and therefore 

whether it should be established. The Council should only enter into such a partnership if it 

has sites to progress which require funding from third party investors. The resilience and 

financial stability of the new proposed partner, IAGH3, will need to be fully investigated. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 As this report is for noting only there are no risks associated with the decision. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 There are no recommendations in this report that will affect the Council’s climate 

emergency response.  

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Scrutiny by Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee (29th August 2018) on the proposal 

to establish DeliverSK: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%

20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf  

14.2 Decision by Cabinet (6th September 2018) to approve the setting-up of the DeliverSK co-

investment partnership: 

(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=949). 

14.3 Non-Key Decision (19th December 2018) to approve IAG as the co-investment partner for 

DeliverSK: (http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=978). 

14.4 Decision by Cabinet (21st January 2020) to approve the Collaboration Agreement with 

Burghley Land Limited: 

(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1057). 

14.5 Report to Companies Committee (4th February 2020) in respect of the collaboration 

agreement with Burghley: 

11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21224/DeliverSK%20Report%20to%20Growth%20OSC%20290818.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=949
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=978
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1057


 
 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24748/Companies%20Committee%2

0-%20formatted.pdf  

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Companies 
Committee 

4 February 2020 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

12

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24748/Companies%20Committee%20-%20formatted.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24748/Companies%20Committee%20-%20formatted.pdf


 

 

 

Companies Committee 
30 June 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Update on the St Martin's Park, Stamford Project 
The purpose of the report is to provide the Committee with an update on the work that has been 
undertaken since the last meeting on the 4th February 2020.  

 

Report Author 

Debbie Roberts, Corporate Project Officer   

 
01476 406080 

 debbie.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Non-Key Stamford St Mary's 

 

Reviewed by: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 18 June 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  22 June 2020  

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council  22 June 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Committee notes the update on the report regarding key areas of governance, 
finance, consultation and project timelines/milestones.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In March 2019 the Council purchased land at Barnack Road, Stamford, which adjoins land 

owned by Burghley Land Limited (Burghley), a wholly owned subsidiary of Burghley 

House Preservation Trust. The land was purchased by the Council as being strategically 

important to the Council’s growth ambitions in Stamford and the Cabinet Minute PD0095 

refers. 

1.2 These adjacent land holdings on Barnack Road, Stamford, now known as St Martin's 

Park, as shown edged red on the attached plan (Appendix A) extend to approximately 

14.429 hectares (35.65 acres). The sites are being promoted for a mixed-use 

development including commercial, residential and retirement homes along with 

associated public open space, car parking, retail and infrastructure. These uses are 

subject to planning consent.     

1.3 The primary objective of the landowners is to create space for a minimum of 500 jobs on a 

mixed-use development (comprising residential, commercial and retirement uses along 

with associated public open space and infrastructure) that will result in a high-quality 

development to enhance the economy of Stamford. The development will provide new 

jobs and varied living accommodation to meet the needs of the local economy and 

residents as well as improving and protecting the setting of Burghley House and its 

grounds. 

1.4 The parties believe that working together and treating both sites as a single development 

opportunity will maximise the value and uses of both sites.  

1.5 Cabinet approved the recommendation in the 21st January 2020, report to enter into a 

contractual Collaboration Agreement with Burghley Land Limited as set out in the Heads 

of Terms relating to land at Barnack Road, Stamford. This was discussed at the last 

meeting of Companies Committee on the 4th February 2020 and the agreement is still 

being finalised between both parties.  

2 Update on Project Governance  

2.1 The successful execution of the St Martin’s Project is dependent on good governance and 

clear lines of communication. Appendix B is the Governance and Decision-Making 

document which outlines how and when decisions will be made on the project.  

2.2 The remit is outlined in the document with clear processes for approvals.  

2.3 Meetings are diarised as per the Governance and Decision-Making document for the 

Project Team, Project Board and Executive Committee.   

2.4 Companies Committee will receive updates on this project for its meetings on the 22nd 

September 2020, 10th November 2020, 23rd February 2021 and the 27th April 2021.  

3 Project Timelines and Milestones 

3.1 A high-level project plan is Appendix C to the report and risk register Appendix D. 

Appendix D is exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 

1972 (as amended) as it contains information which is commercially sensitive.  

3.2 The main activities to note are that Lambert Smith Hampton are acting as agents in 

marketing the site on behalf of the Council and Burghley Estates; there has been 

significant interest in the site; and the consultancy team are assessing bids through stage 

two of the marketing process.  

14



 
 

3.3 A consultancy team has been appointed to commence the pre-planning submission works.  

3.4 Athene Communication have led on the consultation with stakeholder engagement 

commencing on the 11th May and public consultation commencing 18th May 2020. This 

was delayed due to COVID-19 as it was initially hoped to conduct face to face consultation 

in the Stamford Town Hall at the end of March. Instead there was an 8-page residents’ 

newsletter with virtual focus groups. A copy of the residents’ newsletter is included as 

Appendix E.  

3.5 The month-long consultation has enabled various ways for the public, Members and 

stakeholders to view and comment about the proposals. Athene Communications are 

producing an evaluation of the engagement which will be included in the Statement of 

Community Involvement for the planning application submission.  

3.6 The submission of the planning application for the site has slipped by two weeks due to 

COVID-19 and the delay in the consultation starting, and the consultancy team estimate 

that the application will be submitted in mid-July (rather than the end of June). The 

Committee will receive an update on this at the next meeting on the 22nd September 2020.  

3.7 The main project risks remain the success of obtaining planning consent and for all of the 

legal agreements to be agreed by both parties. These are under review through the 

Project Team and Project Board.  

4 Financial Update  

4.1 The purchase of the site was approved by Council in September 2018. The operational 

and holding costs of the site are being funded from the Regeneration Reserve whilst the 

project is being developed. Revenue costs are in the region of £22,000 per month and 

cover the costs of security and business rates. The capital receipts from the development 

have not been included in the Medium-Term Financial Plan but will be incorporated once 

there is greater clarity on the date profiling of the receipts.  

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

5 Legal and Governance Update  

5.1 The legal focus is on agreeing the terms of the Collaboration Agreement, which is nearing 

finalisation. 

5.2 Much progress has been made since the last Companies Committee on establishing a 

governance route to decision making. This should provide the Committee with 

reassurance that key risks are being reviewed at and documented and project delivery is 

being tracked closely. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

6.1 None at this stage of the project.  

7 Risk and Mitigation 

7.1 The Development carries inherent risks which will be managed by the Project Board and 

the Executive Team which form the management of the Collaboration Agreement. The risk 

register is attached to this report as exempt Appendix D.   

8 Community Safety Implications  

15



 
 

8.1 None 

9 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

9.1 There are no recommendations in this report that will impact on the climate emergency at 

this stage of the project.  

10 Other Implications (where significant)  

10.1 None 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 Key Decision Acquisition of Land in South Kesteven 6th September 2018 PD0095 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/b6250/Report%20PD0095%2006th-

Sep-2018%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9 

11.2 Cabinet Approval to enter into the Collaboration Agreement with Burghley Estates 21st 

January 2020  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3853/Decisions%2021st-Jan-

2020%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Site Plan 

12.2 Appendix B – SMP Project Governance  

12.3 Appendix C – Project Plan  

12.4 Appendix D – Risk register  

This appendix is exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 

1972 (as amended) as it contains information which is commercially sensitive.  

12.5 Appendix E – Newsletter for Focus Groups  

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

 

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 21st January 2020  

Final Decision date   N/A   

 

16

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/b6250/Report%20PD0095%2006th-Sep-2018%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/b6250/Report%20PD0095%2006th-Sep-2018%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3853/Decisions%2021st-Jan-2020%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3853/Decisions%2021st-Jan-2020%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2


                 Appendix A   
 

 

17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix B 
 

1 
 

Title:  Governance and decision-making for St Martin’s Park  

Author: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 

Date:  22nd April 2020 

Status:  v2.0 

 

Purpose of Document 

• To set the context for the St Martin’ Park programme 

• To propose membership of the SKDC-side Project Board for St Martin’s Park 

• To determine membership of the SKDC-side Project Team for St Martin’s Park 

• To set-out decision paths for Councillors and officers involved in St Martin’s Park. 

• To consider initial project risks 

Context 

The Council purchased land at Barnack Road, Stamford in March 2019 which adjoins land owned by 
Burghley Land Limited (Burghley), a wholly owned subsidiary of Burghley House Preservation Trust. 
The land was purchased by the Council as being strategically important to the Councils growth 
ambitions in Stamford. 
 
These adjacent land holdings on Barnack Road, Stamford, now known as St Martin's Park, extend to 
approximately 14.429 hectares (35.65 acres) which are currently being promoted for a mixed-use 
development including commercial, residential and retirement homes along with associated public 
open space, car parking, retail and infrastructure, subject to planning consent. 
 
The primary objective of the landowners has been agreed as follows: 
 to create space for a minimum of 500 jobs on a mixed-use development (comprising residential, 
commercial and retirement uses along with associated public open space and infrastructure) that will 
result in high-quality development that will enhance the economy of Stamford providing new jobs 
and varied living accommodation to meet the needs of the local economy and residents as well as 
improving and protecting the setting of Burghley House and its grounds. 
 
The parties have agreed that working together and treating both sites as a single development 
opportunity will maximise the value and uses of both sites. For this reason, the Council will enter into 
a contractual Collaboration Agreement with Burghley, as set out in the agreed Heads of Terms. 
 

Key Documents 

Report to Companies Committee 4th February 2020: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24748/Companies%20Committee%20-%20formatted.pdf 

Saint Martin’s Park Collaboration Agreement: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24750/Appendix%20B%20-%20St%20Martins%20Park%20-

%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf 

Plan for Heads of Terms:  
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24751/Appendix%20C%20-

%20Plan%20for%20HoTs%20for%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24748/Companies%20Committee%20-%20formatted.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24750/Appendix%20B%20-%20St%20Martins%20Park%20-%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24750/Appendix%20B%20-%20St%20Martins%20Park%20-%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24751/Appendix%20C%20-%20Plan%20for%20HoTs%20for%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24751/Appendix%20C%20-%20Plan%20for%20HoTs%20for%20Collaboration%20Agreement.pdf


   Appendix B 
 

2 
 

SKDC-side Governance Structure 

The successful execution of the St Martin’s Project is dependent on good governance and clear lines 

of communication. A project structure is proposed for the SKDC ‘side’ of the project, comprising a 

Board and Project Team: 

1. The SKDC St Martin’s Park Project Board (The Board) 

Overall purpose 

• To agree the Council-side recommendations and decisions that are to be taken into the 
Collaboration Agreement Project Board  

• To receive reports in respect of all risks, financial and legal implications of decisions 

• To have oversight of the project risk register 
 

Proposed Membership 

• Councillor Kelham Cooke (Chair) 

• Councillor Barry Dobson (Vice Chair)  

• Karen Bradford (Chief Executive, SKDC) 

• Paul Thomas (Strategic Director for Growth)  

• Jane McDaid (Assistant Director for Growth and Project Lead) 

• Debbie Roberts (Corporate Project Officer – Board support)  

 

Proposed Remit 

1. To receive project delivery updates showing milestones and performance against the agreed 
milestones and to approve slippage where necessary 

2. To receive budget and delivery reports from the project team   
3. To make decisions that are relevant to the respective roles of the Leader and Chief Executive 

(see Appendix 2), and to feed those decisions into the SMP Collaboration Agreement Project 
Board 

4. To receive recommendations from the project team in order for the Leader (including in his role 
as Cabinet Member for Property) to take reports through the Council’s decision-making 
processes, and to take those decision into the SMP Collaboration Agreement Project Board 

5. To agree key communications, both internal and external.  
 

Regularity of meetings 

The Board will meet fortnightly (initially) for as long as is necessary to deal with the business at 

hand. 

 

  

20



   Appendix B 
 

3 
 

2. The SKDC St Martin’s Park Project Team (SKDC PT) 

Overall Purpose 

• To ensure the delivery of the project against agreed timelines, budgets and delivery 

milestones 

• To make recommendations to the SKDC Board 

• To keep the risk register and decision log updated 

 

Proposed Membership 

 
Core: 

• Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth (Chair) 

• Jane McDaid, AD Growth and CA Project Lead 

• Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance and s151 (Finance) 

• Shahin Ismail, Director of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer (Legal) 

• Bron Madson, Head of Communications (Communications) 

• Debbie Roberts, Corporate Project Officer (Project Support) 
 

Specialist: 

• Phil Moore, Special Projects Manager (Planning) 

• Chris Pike, Asset and Estates Manager (Property) 

 
Proposed Remit 

 
1. To receive update reports and proposed actions from the SMP Collaboration Agreement 

Executive Team 
2. To receive actions from the Leader/CEX’s attendance at the SMP Collaboration Agreement 

Project Board 
3. To present timeline, budget, risk and delivery reports to the Board 
4. To ensure that the Leader and CEX are able to make decisions in accordance with their roles on 

the CA Project Board by applying the appropriate SKDC delegations, or taking reports through 
the Council’s committee process  

5. To monitor progress on Planning issues 
6. To monitor progress on land disposals 
7. To monitor spend on the St Martin’s Park Project 
8. To consider Council-related communications 
9. To consider programme and cash flow matters. 

 
Regularity of Meetings 

The team will meet weekly (initially) for as long as is necessary to deal with the business at hand. 

 

  

21



   Appendix B 
 

4 
 

Decision-making 

Context 
  

• The Collaboration Agreement - approved by Cabinet and reviewed by Companies 
Committee - contains broad principles for the development of St Martin’s Park with 
Burghley Estates 

• The Project Plan is made up of Strategies that are to be appended to that agreement as 
decisions are made by the SMP CA Project Board. When they are appended, they become 
part of the Collaboration Agreement.  

• Project Plan Strategies that are Commercially sensitive need to be treated with 
confidentiality and will be excluded from publishing as appropriate in the Council’s decision-
making processes. The Collaboration Agreement provides for a 50/50 control on decision 
making, which requires trust, openness and transparency by both partners. Consensus will 
be required on all decision making at the CA Board level. The Project Team will therefore 
need to ensure the Project Board are fully sighted on all proposals and their implications to 
ensure consensus can be reached.   

 
Process 

  

• As new Strategies are developed by the SMP CA Executive Team, they should be referred to 
the SKDC Project Team and Board at the earliest possible opportunity.  

• SKDC PT to appraise the Strategies in consultation with CMT and to present 
recommendations to the SKDC Board  

• SKDC PT to advise of decision route required for Strategies, example decision routes: 
 

o Disposal of land - Council 
o Submission of planning application – The SKDC Board 
o Planning approval - Planning Committee 

 

• Regular reports from the SMP ET into the SKDC PT will ensure that the SKDC SMP Board are 
able to make decisions and guide the delivery of the project through the Collaboration 
Agreement Project Board. 

• Likewise, discussions and actions from the CA Project Board will be fed-back by the CEX into 
the SKDCPT and acted on accordingly. 

• See diagram below  
  

22



   Appendix B 
 

5 
 

Decision-making routes 

  

23



   Appendix B 
 

6 
 

Risks 

 
A full risk register is in the process of being developed, including one specifically for the agreement of 
the Collaboration Agreement. Outline risks are as follows: 
 

 Risk L I Score Rating 

P
ro

d
u

ct
 Failure to secure planning permission 2 4 8  

Failure to provide a product that meets market demands 1 3 3  

Developer uncertainty caused by Covid-19 3 3 9  

Developer submissions are not in accordance with the masterplan 2 3 6  
      

Ti
m

e 

Delays in progression of scheme caused by Covid-19 4 3 12  

Delays in delivery of final scheme caused by wider economic 
uncertainty 

3 3 9  
      

C
o

st
 

Insufficient capital funding for the Council 1 2 2  

Insufficient revenue funding for the Council 2 3 6  

Detailed developer submissions are below expectations 3 3 9  
      

C
o

m
m

s 

Perception of unfair advantage for Burghley if their bid for the 
commercial part of the site is successful 

2 2 4  

Current petition to secure Stamford East meadows for community 
use 

4 2 8  

      

Le
ga

l 

Failure to agree Collaboration Agreement, including: 
1. one or other party pulls out before planning 
2. one or other party pulls out after planning consent granted 
3. one or other party ends the collaboration agreement after 

planning is granted   

2 4 8  

 

LI
K
EL
IH
O
O
D

 

ALMOST CERTAIN 
(4) 

 
 

   

PROBABLE 
(3) 

    

POSSIBLE 
(2) 

    

HARDLY EVER 
(1) 

    

 NEGLIGIBLE 
(1) 

MINOR 
(2) 

MAJOR 
(3) 

CRITICAL 
(4) 

 IMPACT 

24



   Appendix B 
 

7 
 

Appendix 1: Relevant bodies 

Member 
 

Body Membership Remit 

South Kesteven 
District Council 

Council As defined in the Council’s Constitution: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23358/Article%204.pdf 

Cabinet As defined in the Council’s Constitution: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24867/Article%208%20updated%20February%202020.pdf 

Companies 
Committee 

As defined in the Council’s Constitution: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24072/Article%2012%202019%20docx.pdf 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
OSC (FEdCo OSC) 

As defined in the Council’s Constitution: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24073/Article%206%20Sept%202019.pdf 
 

SKDC St Martin’s 
Park Board 

Proposed Membership set out in this paper Proposed remit set out in this paper 

SKDC St Martin’s 
Park Project Team 
(SKDC PT) 

Proposed Membership set out in this paper Proposed remit set out in this paper 

    

Burghley House 
Preservation 
Trust 

Trustees (BHPT)   

    

St Martin’s Park Project Board (PB) Miranda – Chair of Burghley House Trustees 
A N Other – Director of Burghley House Trustees  
Kelham Cooke – Leader of the Council, SKDC 
Karen Bradford – Chief Executive, SKDC 

As defined in Collaboration Agreement 

Executive Team (ET) Jane McDaid 
David Pennell 

As defined in Collaboration Agreement 

25

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23358/Article%204.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24867/Article%208%20updated%20February%202020.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24072/Article%2012%202019%20docx.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24073/Article%206%20Sept%202019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24073/Article%206%20Sept%202019.pdf


   Appendix B 
 

8 
 

 

 

Appendix 2: Relevant Roles 

Role Name Functions and delegations 
 

Members  http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23356/Article%202%2023.04.19.pdf 

Leader of the Council Councillor Kelham Cooke  

Cabinet Member for 
Property 

Councillor Kelham Cooke  

Deputy Leader of the 
Council 

Councillor Barry Dobson  

Cabinet Member for Growth Councillor Barry Dobson  

   

Officers  http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24216/Article%2016.pdf 
 

Chief Executive Karen Bradford http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23374/Chief%20Exec.pdf 
 

Section 151 Officer Richard Wyles http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23375/Chief%20Finance%20Officer.pdf 
 

Monitoring Officer Shahin Ismail http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23376/AD%20Leg%20Dem.pdf 
 

Strategic Director for 
Growth 

Paul Thomas  

Head of Communications Bron Madson  

Special Projects Manager Phil Moore  

Assets and Estates Manager Chris Pike  

 

26

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24216/Article%2016.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23374/Chief%20Exec.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23375/Chief%20Finance%20Officer.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23376/AD%20Leg%20Dem.pdf


ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Resource Names
1 Pre-Planning and Consultation 73 days Wed 01/04/20 Fri 10/07/20 Insight
2 Assemble Data room of technical documents
3 Further ground investigation
4 Ongoing contact with planning consultees via LPA under PPA/pre-app
5 OPUN design review
6 EA screening application submitted and considered
7 Masterplan and access/highway proposals developed
8 Briefing meeting with PCC
9 Heritage assessment
10 Consultation with Homes England 
11 LVIA
12 Planning Consultation 1 day Fri 10/07/20 Fri 10/07/20 Athene
13 Letter sent to key stakeholders inviting to online briefings
14 Attendance at PAD design review organised by LPA (date tbc)
15 Round-table briefing for key councillors, Stamford Town Council and Stamford First
16 Newsletter delivered to local residents and businesses  (avoiding half term)
17 Posters distributed in local area
18 Website goes live
19 Media release issued to local press
20 Advert published in Stamford Mercury 
21 Resident focus groups
22 Online survey goes live
23 Refinement of masterplan and application package
24 Consultation closes 
25 Analyse feedback and response handling
26 Draft SCI
27 Approve SCI
28 Submit planning application Fri 10/07/20 Insight
29 Bidders Information 109 days Wed 01/04/20 Mon 31/08/20 LSH/Bidwells
30 Prepare information pack
31 Contact parties to discuss on site opportunities
32 Advise on proposed timetable for expression of interest
33 Shortlist chosen parties
34 Shortlist parties sign up to NDA & next stage of information pack prepared
35 Stage 2 Bidding Process (for Shortlisted parties)
36 Stage 2 Bid Deadline
37 Stage 2 Bid Assessment and interviews
38 Seek Best & Final Bids from reduced shortlist of parties
39 Best and final bids received
40 Notification to successful parties
41 SKDC Approval Process to inform of successful bidder SKDC
42 Legalities 238 days Wed 01/04/20 Fri 26/02/21

10/07

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: SMP Project Plan May 2
Date: Mon 22/06/20

27

A
ppendix C



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Resource Names
43 Burghley to complete on Park View Burghley
44 SKDC to issue demolition notice and speak to residents SKDC
45 Negotiate HoTs
46 HoTs finalised, subject to planning consent
47 Undertake Legal Contract Negotiations and Developers Due Diligence
48 S106 preperation
49 Address issues arising during application
50 Committee presentation (during October/November)
51 Application determined s/t completion of s106 (November/December )
52 Contracts exchanged subject to planning (latest dates)
53 Planning consent schedule to be issued with S106 agreement
54 Judicial review period of 6 weeks (on issuing of planning permission so could be earlier than shown)
55 Sales Completion occurs (assumes 10 working day after expiry of JR period)
56 Project Governance 232 days Thu 16/04/20 Fri 05/03/21 SKDC
57 Weekly Project team meetings in place 186 days Thu 16/04/20 Thu 31/12/20 SKDC
58 Twice a month Project board meetings in place 177 days Wed 29/04/20 Thu 31/12/20 SKDC
59 Executive Team meetings in place - ongoing SKDC/BURGHLEY
60 Company Committee Update 1 day Tue 30/06/20 Tue 30/06/20 SKDC
61 Company Committee Update 1 day Tue 22/09/20 Tue 22/09/20 SKDC

SKDC
SKDC

SKDC
SKDC

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 2

Project: SMP Project Plan May 2
Date: Mon 22/06/20

28



Document is Restricted

29

Appendix D
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



South Kesteven District Council and Burghley were 
due to hold a public exhibition at the Town Hall on 
Tuesday 24th March to display their proposal for St 
Martin’s Park, Barnack Road, Stamford. However, due 
to the Coronavirus pandemic, this had to be 
cancelled and as there is no certainty when this will 
be able to be reorganised, it has been decided to 
take the consultation online to ensure local 
stakeholders and the community can have their say.   

We do appreciate that many people do not have 
access to a computer, therefore, this newsletter has 
been produced to share some of the available 
information, giving you the opportunity to respond 
with your comments and questions.  

Details of how to access the online documents, or to 
how to contact us by Royal Mail or telephone can be 
found at the end of this newsletter.

Red line boundary of St Martin's Park site

THE SITE 
The site covers a total of 14.7 hectares and its 
location is highlighted in red on the map below.   

Between them, South Kesteven District Council 
and Burghley own all the land within the site 
boundary.  Both landowners are committed to 
delivering a high-quality, well designed and highly 
sustainable development to preserve and 
enhance the setting of this part of Stamford and 
to provide new employment opportunities and 
homes for the town.  

INTRODUCTION

31

Appendix E



Employment 
The South Kesteven Local Plan emphasises the 
importance of providing new employment provision 
in parts of the district, particularly Stamford, Bourne 
and the Deepings and how they must not “become 
simply dormitory towns.”  

Cummins Generator Technologies was a major 
employer in Stamford until it closed in 2018, leaving 
future employment use of the site in question.   

The eastern part of the proposed site also has 
existing planning permission for 15,600 sq m of 
office accommodation. 

The plan below shows the office development 
that has already been granted planning 
permission on the eastern part of the site, 
together with the factory buildings.  
The landowners are working jointly to bring forward 
a comprehensive development for the whole site in 
preference to this existing position.

Housing 
The South Kesteven Local Plan identified the district 
needs an additional 16,125 new homes in the period 
2011-2036, which equates to 650 new homes a year. 
Stamford is expected to provide 3,155 of these. The 
Stamford North urban extension will provide much of 
this, but the Plan also allows for sustainable 
development to take place elsewhere at the town. 

The Local Plan also requires that development meets 
the needs of current and future households. This 
includes: 
l Housing for older people to help secure and 

sustain their independence 
l High-quality family housing that meets changing 

needs and responds to market demand 
l High-quality affordable housing enabling people 

to live near their families and work opportunities 
(development is required to include 30% 
affordable housing) and 

l Increased choice in the housing market 

Stamford 
Neighbourhood Plan 
It is expected the Neighbourhood 
Plan will be finalised during 2021. 
The emerging Neighbourhood 
Plan allows housing and 
employment to come forward on 
appropriate sites in the town, and 
we are confident St Martin’s Park 
will be fully in accordance with  
the Plan. 

Heritage 
Stamford was the first Conservation Area to be designated in the 
United Kingdom and there are over 600 listed buildings in the town.   

While the site does not contain any heritage assets, it does fall 
within the setting of the Grade I Listed Burghley House and is close 
to the Grade II* registered parkland of Burghley House.   

To the north of the site, on the opposite side of the river, lies St 
Leonard’s Priory, a Grade I Listed Building and Scheduled Ancient 
Monument. There are also listed buildings in the wider area, 
including the church towers that contribute to Stamford's  
unique roofscape.   

The existing empty factory buildings on the proposed site currently 
detract from the setting of these heritage assets and our proposal 
for St Martin’s Park provides an opportunity for enhancement 
through a high-quality replacement development. 

MEETING STAMFORD’S  
EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING NEEDS

SITE CONTEXT

Physical constraints 
The substantial majority of the site is free from any physical 
constraints, but we are taking into account: 
l A 33KV power line which crosses the site diagonally.  

This will be re-routed 
l A small area of surface water flood risk in the north-eastern part 

of the site. This area does not affect any existing properties and 
our drainage strategy will prevent it becoming a future issue 

l   A noise buffer to the railway within which buildings will be 
designed with mitigation to ensure people living in 

the development will not be affected by noise 
l How existing points of access could be         

    utilised to serve the development.32



Illustrative draft masterplan

DRAFT MASTERPLAN 
The draft illustrative masterplan 
is for a high-quality 
development which provides a 
mix of uses comprising:   
l A designated commercial area 

(shaded blue on the 
masterplan) 

l A mixed-use area (shaded 
purple) 

l A retirement village (shaded red) 
l A range of residential 

properties, including 30% 
affordable homes  
(shaded grey) 

l A small neighbourhood store 
and café to serve the day to day 
needs of workers and residents 
on the site 

l Generous areas of green and 
open space including a new 
tree-lined avenue on the 
Barnack Road frontage, 
children's play area and informal 
public open space

33



THE CREATION OF A  
WALKABLE COMMUNITY 

The draft masterplan seeks to further enhance the 
sustainability of the site by encouraging cycling and 
the creation of a walkable community, with the 
opportunity for people to live and work on the 
development, minimising the need for travel by car.   

In addition, we are investigating the ability to create 
an improved footway and cycleway along the 
northern side of Barnack Road, between the site and 
Water Street. This would then link with the new, tree-
lined avenue along the site frontage. 

ACCESS, PARKING  
AND SITE LAYOUT  

There would be four separate vehicle access points to 
the proposed development along Barnack Road 
utilising those which currently exist. The site layout for 
vehicle movement and parking has been planned 
using guidance in the Government’s design document 
"Manual for Streets". Electric vehicle charging points 
are also proposed across the development. 

 TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT  
A Transport Assessment is being carried out. This will 
be submitted with the planning application, together 
with a Travel Plan. It is our objective that the overall 
traffic impact from the development will be at least 
neutral when compared to the existing permitted 
uses of the site.   

EDUCATION AND HEALTH 
PROVISION  

We are mindful that the educational and health care 
needs of residents living in the development will 
need to be met, and we have been liaising with 
Lincolnshire County Council Education and 
Lincolnshire NHS to ensure that appropriate 
provision is made.   

Any financial contributions towards local amenities 
or services, necessitated by the proposed 
development, such as education or health services, 
would be made through contributions under a 
Section 106 Agreement.

St Martin's Park provides an opportunity to renew 
the site frontage, up to the Barnack Road edge 
opposite Burghley Park, so that it is sympathetic 
to the special character of Stamford.  

The introduction of a new avenue of parkland trees 
along Barnack Road will be in keeping with the 
adjoining parkland and will provide an attractive 
outlook for the new development as well as creating a 
pleasant pedestrian route for residents and those 
working at St Martin’s Park to enjoy.   

It is envisaged the green space will widen to the east, 
creating a soft transition from the more densely 
developed areas along the route to the historic core 
of Stamford, to the rural landscape to the east. This 
will also reflect the green characteristics already 

present along Barnack Road and is designed to 
promote the health and well-being of a vibrant new 
and mixed community by providing an attractive 
route to the town centre, employment, services and 
railway station.  

The transition from country to town will be marked 
along the development edge by the use of 
appropriate building types, starting with detached 
and paired villas on the approach from Barnack, 
before transitioning to terraced homes - a familiar 
feature along Barnack Road.   

To the west, where the employment area and 
neighbourhood store is planned, the design will be 
centred around the opportunity to revitalise the 1904 
building into a modern business hub. 

It is proposed that the main residential area, located 
on the eastern part of the site, would comprise 
approximately 190 new homes, within walking and 
cycling distance of Stamford town centre. This 
includes affordable housing, which will provide 
much needed new homes for all generations. 

The proposal is for a range of housing. This is  
only indicative at the present time, but is expected  
to comprise:

1 BEDROOM  
APARTMENT 

8.6%

2 BEDROOM  
APARTMENT 

8.1%

5 BEDROOM  
HOUSE  

3.2%

4 BEDROOM  
HOUSE  

13.4%

3 BEDROOM  
HOUSE 
37.1%

2 BEDROOM 
APARTMENT  
(FLATS OVER 
GARAGES) 
/2-BED HOUSE 
29.6%

A key aim of the St Martin’s Park development is to 
provide high-quality employment facilities and job 
opportunities for Stamford and its residents, through 
the regeneration of this former industrial site. It is 
estimated that the proposed employment areas will 
create a minimum of 500 jobs, with additional jobs 
being created by the retirement village, café and 
neighbourhood store. 

The proposed commercial and mixed-use areas 
would provide for up to 10,000 sq m of high-quality 

office and workshop space. The inclusion of 
workshop units will provide an opportunity for light 
manufacturing (including start-up businesses) to 
continue on the site alongside offices.  

We are proposing to retain and refurbish the current 
‘1904 Building' which is the oldest building on the 
former factory site. This will maintain an important link 
with the site’s industrial past and help to ensure the 
development reflects the character of the local area. 

The mixed-use area of the site would also include up 
to 25 apartments which would be built above ground 
floor commercial uses.  

The proposed retirement village would comprise 
around 150 new homes, including assisted living, 
together with:  
l A restaurant/ bar/coffee shop 
l Swimming pool and gym 
l Hairdressers 
l Library, hobby and meeting rooms 
l A wellness spa and treatment rooms 
l A cinema and games room  

The retirement village would not be closed off as a 
separate community, but instead would be designed 
to integrate with the wider development as much  
as possible.

PROVIDING NEW RESIDENTIAL AND RETIREMENT  
LIVING OPPORTUNITIES VISION FOR BARNACK ROAD

PROVIDING NEW EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR STAMFORD

TRANSPORT, ACCESSIBILITY AND FACILITIES
The site is in a sustainable location, accessible to 
Stamford town centre and public transport:   
l Stamford railway station is approximately 15 

minutes’ walk or 5 minutes by bicycle 
l The nearest bus stop is 200 metres from the site 

l Stamford town centre is approximately 17 
minutes’ walk from the nearest part of the site or 
five minutes by bicycle 

l There is nearby access to major roads such as the 
A1 and A43 

34



The opportunity for input from the local community 
is an important part of the planning process.  

We are holding eight focus groups, which we are 
inviting members of the local community to join.  

[insert table of dates and times] 

These will be run as virtual online meetings using 
Zoom, an online video conference system. Places 
are limited and are on a first come first served 
basis. If you’re able to attend you will be sent a link 
and password in advance of the meeting. 

To access the meeting, you simply click on the link 
and follow the instructions, entering the password 
when prompted.  

If you don’t have access to a computer or are 
unable to attend a focus group, you can contact us 
the following ways and we’ll answer your questions 
and enquiries: 

Royal Mail by addressing your letter to  
FREEPOST – ST MARTIN’S PARK 

FREEPHONE – 0800 XXXX 

EMAIL – consultation@stmartinspark-
stamford.co.uk

ENERGY 
We will maximise the energy efficiency and 
performance of the materials used and are 
exploring the potential for on-site renewable 
energy generation.  

WATER 
The site is within Flood Zone 1 (the lowest 
probability of flooding from rivers and seas) and 
is not a risk of flooding from any other sources. 
We are proposing water use minimisation 
measures across the development.

GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE AND 
ECOLOGICAL ENHANCEMENTS 
We are proposing approximately three hectares 
of green infrastructure across the site, including 
parkland, extensive tree planting and the 
inclusion of edible plants, shrubs and fruit trees.   

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 
We are committed to incorporating low 
environmental impact materials within the 
design of the development and the responsible 
sourcing of building elements.  

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN 
Both South Kesteven District Council and Burghley are committed to delivering a sustainable 
development for Stamford and this includes all aspects of the development.

NEXT STEPS: Thank you for taking the time to read our newsletter about St Martin’s Park. 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Companies Committee 

30 June 2020  

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 
Chairman of the Board, 
Environment SK Limited 

   

         
  

 

Environment SK Limited 

This report provides an update on Environment SK Limited’s first year’s performance and its 
strategic forward-looking business plan. 

 

Report Author 

Ian Yates, Director, Environment SK Ltd  

 
01476 406201  

 i.yates@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Competitiveness Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Mark Jones, Director, Environment SK Ltd  19 June 2020 

Approved by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Chairman, 
Environment SK Ltd  

22 June 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Chairman, 
Environment SK Ltd  

22 June 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Committee review the report and make any recommendations in order to 
support the ongoing commercial development of Environment SK Ltd as a South 
Kesteven District Council wholly owned company. 

 

 

 

37

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting agenda @southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

1.  The Background to the Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to support the Companies Committee’s role in 

keeping an oversight of the Council’s owned companies, specifically 

Environment SK Limited. 

1.2 This report provides information which demonstrates how the company has 

performed in its first year of operation against its original objectives. Any 

information which is commercially sensitive has been excluded from the 

public report. The Strategic Business Plan including commercial information 

is attached as the exempt Appendix 1. 

2. Environment SK Limited 

2.1 Environment SK Ltd was incorporated on 31st October 2018 and is wholly 

owned by South Kesteven District Council. Its purpose is to deliver the 

Council’s grounds maintenance services and to commercialise and use the 

skills and resources of the company to generate profit by selling services to 

others. Under procurement law (Public Contract Regulations 2015) the 

business is classified as a Teckal company allowing the Council’s core 

contract to be undertaken by the Company exempt from public procurement 

rules. Being a Teckal company permits trading outside of the Council’s work 

base up to 20% of turnover, based on a three-year average. 

2.2 If the Company is successful in securing private work in excess of the Teckal 

limit then that work will be delivered through Environment SK Commercial 

Services Ltd, where there are no limits on turnover. This Company was 

established for this purpose. To date it has not been utilised. The longer-

term aim is to expand the range of services that may be able to be traded for 

profit and these could also be integrated into the Company. 

2.3 Environment SK Ltd undertakes South Kesteven District Council’s grounds 

maintenance work with payment only being made for works undertaken. 

Contractual rates during the first year remained at those of the previous 

contractor in year one without any increases to compensate for statutory 

cost increases in the first year i.e. minimum wage rise and mandatory 

employer pension contributions. These were absorbed by the Company. 

 

 

38



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 – Company arrangement 

3. Company Management 

3.1  The Company has three Directors being Cllr Dr Peter Moseley, Ian Yates 

and Mark Jones. The business is managed by an Operations Director, Keith 

Rowe, who is currently on secondment from South Kesteven District Council. 

The Board meets on a regular basis to receive management reports and 

monitor both financial and service quality performance. 

4. Products and Services 

4.1 The Company provides facilities management focused on grounds 

maintenance, arboriculture and horticultural services to public and private 

organisations / individuals. These include County, District, Parish and Town 

Councils, Schools, Health Service, private companies and individual 

members of the public.  

4.2 The range of core services will be expanded linked to new market 

opportunities. The ability to react to the new environment post Covid-19 for 

example is key to maximising potential growth and profits. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2 – Typical Service  

 

 

ESK ESK 
Commercial  
Co 

South Kesteven 

District Council 

 

80% Council work  
20% Private work  

All Commercial 
work   

Arboriculture 

Line Marking  

Shrub Maintenance 

Maintenance 

Advance Pitch Care 

Grass Cutting  Fencing 

Assisted Gardening  

Football Grounds  

ESK 

39



5.          First Year’s Performance 

5.1 The first year’s goal was to establish a new company that would be fit for the 

purpose of delivering the Council’s grounds maintenance services as 

previously undertaken by an external contractor and in its first year to deliver 

a positive financial trading position.  

5.2  The plans to establish the Company included the procurement of all vehicles 

and machinery, the securing of suitable premises and transfer of employees 

from the previous contractor. All were delivered successfully. Under the 

Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employees (TUPE) regulations those 

employees previously employed on a contract were required to transfer to 

the new company on their existing terms and conditions. The first year also 

required the establishment of the required business support arrangements. 

The Company has in its first year utilised and paid for the support services 

provided by the Council. The Company worked with the Council to develop 

their support service provision as required by a commercial organisation. 

This mainly includes operational accounting support, IT and HR. The 

Company’s end of year accounts will be produced by an external accounting 

company to ensure all appropriate advice is secured. These will be produced 

by the end of July 2020. All costs associated with the Company including all 

first year set up costs have been charged to and paid for by the Company. 

5.3  In the first year of a company’s operation rules allow for the trading year end 

to be adjusted. As the Company was established in October 2018 and 

started effectively trading in March 2019 a decision was taken to set the 

Company’s trading period to be April to March each year. 

5.4  Whilst the Company’s end of year accounts are yet to be finalised, the latest 

position does identify that in its first year of operation Environment SK Ltd 

covered all its set up and ongoing costs and delivered a financial return. 

6 Business Plans 

6.1 Currently the Company’s key and priority customer is South Kesteven 

District Council. It recognises that due to budget pressures the value of 

Council work over time is likely to reduce. The Company’s approach to 

managing this impact is detailed in the Strategic Business Plan. 

6.2  The plan details the financial performance in the first 13 months (Year 1 

subject to final accounts approval) and sets out the strategic financial targets 

for the next 4 years. They have been set to ensure the Company maintains 

and seeks to maximise any financial returns that can be secured. 

6.3  The Strategic Business Plan covers the company management and 

employee structure, the products and services to be provided, marketing 

opportunities, the competition and our estimated financial performance and 

targets. 

6.4  The Council established Environment SK Ltd with an initial start-up loan to 

provide the initial capital investment in plant and machinery and is charged 

at a commercial rate. Each year end the Company will evaluate its financial 

position. Early repayment of debt alongside investment in additional assets 

will be assessed in line with the business requirements. 

 

40



7 Appendices 

7.1 Appendix 1: Strategic Business Plan.  

This appendix contains information which is exempt under paragraph 3, 

Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). This is 

information which relates to the financial or business affairs of an individual 

or organisation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

Appendix A
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Companies Committee: Work Programme 

No  Company/ 
Item 

Committee 
Date 
Review 

Lead Officer/ 
Assigned to 

Actions and decisions Progress update 

1.  EnvironmentSK 
 

30 June 2020 Ian Yates  
Asst Director, 
Commercial & 
Operations 

To consider the following: 
 

 Business Plan 

 Year 1 financial accounts  
 
 
 

 

2.  St Martin’s Park, 
Stamford 
 

30 June 2020 
 
For review 21 
October 2020 
(update on 
milestones) 

Jane McDaid 
Assistant 
Director, Growth 
 

To consider the following: 
 

 Financial summary and exposure 

 Milestones 

 Governance arrangements 
 
To give a summary update to provide the Committee with 
further information regarding the current status of the 
project. 
 
 
 

 

3.  DeliverSK 30 June 2020 Jane McDaid 
Assistant 
Director, Growth 
 
 

To consider the following: 
 

 Position statement to provide the Committee with 
an update on the current status of the company 

 
 
 

 

4.  HomesSK 28 July 2020 Ken Lyon, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive, 
Housing Delivery 
 
 

To consider the following: 
 

 Position statement to provide the Committee with 
an update on the current status of the company 

 
 
 
 

 

51

A
genda Item

 7



 

5.  InvestSK 
 

28 July 2020 Steve Bowyer 
CEO, InvestSK 

To consider the following: 
 

 Business Plan (including changes as a result of the 
COVID-19 response) 

 Financial update  
 
Business Plan to be developed in line with guidance from 
the Chair and Vice Chair 
 

 

6.  Gravitas Housing 
Limited 
 

22 September 
2020 

Harry Rai  
Assistant 
Director, Housing 
 

To consider the following: 
 

 Business Plan  

 Update on the Wherry’s Lane project 
 

Business Plan to be developed in line with guidance from 
the Chair and Vice Chair 
 

 

7.  St Martin’s Park, 
Stamford 
 

21 October 
2020  

Jane McDaid 
Assistant 
Director, Growth 
 

To consider the following: 
 

 The progress of milestones identified at the June 
meeting 

 
 

 

8.  East Midlands 
Building Control 
 

10 November 
2020 

Rob Howbrook,  
Building Control 
Lead Officer 

To consider the following: 
 

 Update report including the impact of COVID-19 
 

 

 
Items for future consideration 

 

9.  Wherry’s Lane 
Management 
Company Limited 
 

TBC 
 

Jane McDaid 
Assistant 
Director, Growth 
 

 To consider reporting requirements  

 To receive detailed accounts 
 

 

 
 
Notes: 

 Reports to have front-sheets with recommendations and to be reviewed by the Section 151 and Monitoring Officer    

 Vice Chair to be notified of papers proposed to be exempt  

52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020
	4 DeliverSK
	5 St Martin's Park, Stamford
	Appendix A - Plan
	Appendix B - Project Governance
	Appendix C- Project Plan May 2020
	Appendix D- Risk log May 2020
	Appendix E - Newsletter Focus Groups

	6 EnvironmentSK
	Exempt Appendix A- Complete Strategic Business Plan EnvSK

	7 Work Programme

